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Society Outing
Tour o f  W addesdon M anor Gardens 

24 th  Septem ber 2016
------------------  Sheila R Cope ------------------

W addesdon M a n o r - The N o rth  Avenue a n d  Founta in

S o w hat w ould you have done if  you w ere 
36 y e a r  old Baron F erd inand  de 
Rothschild, w ealthy  ow ner of num erous 

outstanding w orks of art, about to inherit a 
fu rther fortune and art collection b u t your 
beloved wife and cousin Evelina had  jus t 
died in childbirth  and you r son stillborn?
O ur guide explained  how  F erdinand  
resolved his dilem m a. He set up  the Evelina 
hospital for poor children in  the borough of 
Southwark, since absorbed into the Guys' 
and St. T hom as's NHS Foundation Trust, 
and began  to search for a site w herein  to 
house all his treasures.
In  1874 Ferdinand bought the site of 2,500 
acres at W addesdon in  Buckingham shire 
from the Duke of M arlborough. This area 
w as already fam iliar to the Rothschilds and 
the ir friends because of the ir hun ting  and 
leisure activities and once the top of the hill 
had b een  pla teaued  off and surrounding 
roads built, co nstru c tion  could  begin .

Ferdinand had  b een  brought up  in  France 
and chose Gabriel-Hippolyte D estailleur to 
design a chateau sim ilar to those of the 
Loire valley, no t to use as a hom e bu t as a 
place to store his w orks of fine art and for 
friends and fam ily to visit and enjoy them . 
Likew ise th e  garden, designed  b y  Elie 
Laine, tends to be form al and in  the French 
style although  orig inally  various exotic 
anim als w ere housed there  in  addition to 
goats w ho roam ed  am ong the  artificial 
Pulham ite rocks.
The m anor house is approached by  an 
avenue flanked w ith oak trees w ith  wide 
law ns on each side. M ature trees, since 
replaced due to disease, w ere p lan ted  at the 
tim e, tran spo rted  on specially  designed 
carts draw n by  Percheron horses. Bedding 
p lants -  no perenn ials -  w ere form erly 
cultivated on site b u t are now  bought in  
from local suppliers.

The aviary, in  rococo style, Chinese blue-
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green in  colour and w ith  gold- leaf trellis 
effect, has zoo status, although the sm allest 
in  th e  w orld, and  is now  u sed  for 
co nservation  p u rpo ses to h e lp  p reven t 
extinction of rare birds. Each b ird  has its 
own logbook w hich travels w ith  it. N ear the 
aviary are two large b ird  structures, a Pekin 
robin about 10 feet high on its m ound  and a 
p heasan t. Both are covered  in  3 
dim ensional carpet bedding, sim ilar in  style 
to the crow n in  the cen tre o f the M arket 
Square in  Dover this sum m er.
Ferdinand died in  1898 and his youngest 
sister Alice, who lived un til 1922 and who 
had acted as his hostess, con tinued  to 
m a in ta in  the  esta te  in  th e  estab lished  
m a n n er and the p roperty  rem ained  w ith in  
the Rothschild family. In  1957 Jam es de 
Rothschild and his wife D orothy inherited  
from Alice and bequeathed  the property  
and 160 acres to the N ational Trust u n d er a 
unique arrangem ent w hereby  the fam ily 
have influence over the m anagem ent of it. 
Indeed, the p roperty  does no t have the 
“flavour” of the N ational Trust about it. 
Jam es has b een  succeeded by  his cousin 
Jacob w ho is a great benefactor to the estate 
and patron  of the arts and has spen t m uch  
of h is own finance on restoration. New 
w orks of art are being added. This is very 
evident in  the garden statuary. At the end of 
the avenue n ea r the house are a pair of

plant-shaped structures about 20 feet high 
installed last y ear and designed by  Joana 
Vasconcelos. U nsurprisingly  they  are called 
Lafite as they  feature m agnum  w ine bottles 
w hich apparently  light up  at night. This, 
and a rep resen tation  of coach and horses 
en titled  Speed La Carrosse, (2012) in  red 
powder- coated stainless steel and designed 
by  Xavier Veilhan contrasts greatly  w ith  the 
o lder classical sculptures, notably those of 
Apollo and of Bacchus w ith a goat, w hich 
are carefully covered up  in  winter.
At the back  of the house, on the Southern  
side, is the terrace and the parterre, the 
designs of w hich are changed in  w in te r and 
spring and w hich often reflect art w orks in 
the house such as, at p resent, the border of 
the  carpet in  the recen tly  opened  Red 
D rawing Room. The large fountain in  the 
cen tre features Pluto taking Persephone to 
th e  u nderw orld . F ou rteen  full tim e 
gardeners w ork on the estate, supplem ­
en ted  by  N ational Trust volunteers. With
25,000 bedding p lants used annually  it is no 
w onder tha t the garden is Grade 1 listed.
Finally, a h u m a n  touch  am ong all the 
m agnificence, we w ere show n an electric 
socket at the base of a tree n ea r the house 
w here Mrs Jam es Rothschild liked to sit in 
the sum m er. It w as w here she plugged in 
h e r telephone, so we w ere told.

The Parterre


